
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
April 24, 2025 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 

Page 1 of 65



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Draft Minutes of the 3/27/25 Board Meeting     1 
(2)       Draft Minutes of the 4/13/25 Special Board Meeting    2 
(3)       March Resident Council Minutes      3 

 
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT         Verbal 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        4 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)      Staff Presentation – Holly Edmondson, Director of Nursing   Verbal 
(2)      First Quarter 2025 Overtime Report      5 

   
B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report      6 

 
C.  Business 

(1)    Financials         7 

(2)       Purchase Request – Asphalt Sealing      8 

(3)       Purchase Request – Commercial Dryer     9 

 

11. Medical Staff 
(1)  Soraia Liggens, NP        10 

(2)       Fatima Cortez, NP        11 

 
G.T.P. Announcements   

(1)     Next Board Meeting – May 29, 2025 
(2)       Golf Outing – May 16, 2025       12 

      
12. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

13. CLOSED SESSION 
Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult with our attorney 
regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, DHHS and the Grand 
Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board v PACE North. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 65



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE MARCH 27, 2025 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Carol Crawford, Karen Griggs       Board  
  Dave Hautamaki, Lindsey Dood, Darcey Gratton      Staff  
   
ABESENT: TJ Andrews                 Commission 
GUESTS:  
         
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00am by Board Chair Mary Marois at Garfield Township.    
 
First Public Comment – none 
 
County Liaison Report – none  
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Marois asked if there were additions, changes or corrections to 
the agenda.  Motion was made by Griggs to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 
seconded by Crawford and carried unanimously.  
     
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with 
by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that any 
item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  
Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Draft Minutes of the 2/27/25 Board Meeting 
(2)       February Resident Council Minutes 

 
Motion was made by Crawford to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Griggs and carried unanimously. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – None 
 
Chairman Report – Marois gave an update on the hiring a new CEO stating the board has 
narrowed down to sixteen applicants.  The board agreed to meet soon to narrow down the 
remaining applicants to start the interview process.   
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois reviewed February’s Service Excellence Awards. 
 
Cottage Masterplan Update – Marois recently met with Hautamaki and the president of the 
Foundation to discuss and develop a strategy for the next steps regarding the Cottages. During 
the meeting, Hautamaki shared that he has instructed his team to conduct further research on 
other Assisted Living facilities to explore ways to expand services and better meet the growing 
needs in the area and will provide updates as progress is made. 
 

Page 3 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

CEO Update – This agenda items was covered under the Chairman Report so no further 
update was needed. 
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – Hautamaki reviewed the February monthly report and 
addressed questions from the board members. He highlighted key activities and menu options, 
providing the board with a copy of the February activities calendar. Hautamaki also shared the 
news that Financial Director Lindsey Dood will be retiring on April 18th. Former Administrator/ 
CEO and CFO Kory Hansen has been re-hired to take over Dood's position. Both Hautamaki 
and Marois took a moment to recognize and commend Dood for his exceptional work as 
Finance Director. 
 
BUSINESS 
 
(1) Financial Report – Dood presented the financial operations report for February 2025 and 

answered board members’ questions.  Dood emphasized the outstanding balance owed by 
PACE North under the terms of a deferral agreement. Additionally, Dood noted that, as 
advised by legal counsel, a Denial of Payment Notice had been issued to PACE North in 
accordance with the agreement.  

 
Motion made by Crawford to accept the financial operations report as presented.  
Seconded by Griggs and carried unanimously. Roll call Marois – yes, Crawford– yes, 
Griggs – yes. 

 
(2) Request to Purchase – Mock Survey Agreement – Hautamaki reviewed the necessity for 

a mock survey as outlined in his memo to the board. Two bids were received, and the 
recommended bid was for Lebenbom & Rothman Consulting as presented based on it being 
the lowest bid. 

 
Motion made by Crawford to approve the agreement for a mock survey with Lebenbom 
& Rothman Consulting as presented to the board.  Motion was seconded by Griggs and 
carried unanimously. Roll call Marois – yes, Crawford– yes, Griggs – yes. 

 
(3) Request to Purchase – Aspen & Birch Roof – Hautamaki reviewed the request to replace 

the roofing on the Aspen and Birch Pavilions and provided quotes for replacing either one or 
both. He noted that Aspen Pavilion is in the worst condition, but both pavilions need to be 
replaced as soon as possible. Three bids were received, and the recommended bid was 
from T.E.S. Construction, as it was the lowest bid. 

 
Motion made by Griggs to approve the bid from T.E.S. Construction for $238,750.00 to 
replace both Aspen and Birch Pavilion as presented.  Motion was seconded by Crawford 
and carried unanimously.  Roll call Marois – yes, Crawford– yes, Griggs – yes. 
 

(4) Request to Purchase – Dump Trailer Hautamaki reviewed the need to purchase a dump 
trailer.  Three bids were received, and the recommended bid was for Team One Trailers. 
based on it being the lowest bid. 

 
Motion made by Crawford to approve the bid from Team One Trailers for $10,400.00 to 
purchase a dump trailer as presented.  Motion was seconded by Griggs and carried 
unanimously. Roll call Marois – yes, Crawford– yes, Griggs – yes. 
 

Page 4 of 65



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

(5) Attending/Consulting Privileges - Hautamaki reviewed the request by Longevity of 
Michael Norwick, NP and Chaz Casey, PA to have attending privileges and Leah 
Buckingham, NP to have consulting privileges.  All credentials were reviewed by Dr. April 
Kurkowski, Medical Director and approved.    
 

Motion was made by Crawford to approve Michael Norwick, NP, Chaz Casey, PA and 
Leah Buckingham, NP as presented to the board.  Motion was seconded by Griggs and 
carried unanimously. 
 

 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next regular board meeting April 24, 2025. 
(2) Marois shared that a MCMCFC conference is available for the Board to attend in 

June and asked them to reach out to the DHHS office if they are able to attend. 
 
Second Public Comment  
Linda Pepper 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:48 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 5 of 65



 

1 
 

                                                                                            
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 13, 2025 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
    
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Carol Crawford, Karen Griggs    Board 
  Dave Hautamaki (virtual), Darcey Gratton    Staff 
ABSENT: Tj Andrews        County  
GUESTS:   
     
The special board meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board was called to order at 5:30 pm by Board Chair Mary Marois in the Board room at 
Grand Traverse Pavilions.   
 
First Public Comment - None 
 
Action Items 
 

Finalize interview questions for the CEO position – Marois provided the board with 
potential questions that she gathered from the board, Pavilions executive team and the 
community.  The board reviewed each question and decided on which questions could 
be used for the first and second interviews.   

 
Schedule interviews – The board agreed on four different dates for the first round of 
CEO interviews and requested for Gratton to contact each applicant to set up a time. 

 
Second Public Comment - None 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:45 pm 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 
Date: April 24, 2025            Approved 
                                         Corrected and Approved 

Page 6 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
2



PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
March 20, 2025 

 
The March 2025 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was called 
to order at 11:00 am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Sam Mahon. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members present were introduced:Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
Birch Pavilion: 5 Residents attended. 
Cherry Pavilion: 8 Residents attended. 
Dogwood Pavilion: 6 Residents attended. 
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Sam Mahon, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Clay Wagatha, Marketing/Life Enrichment 
Ashley Walters, Social Services Designee, Social Work 
Melanie Farmer, RN, ADON – Birch Pavilion  
Christian Andersen, General Manager - Forefront Dining Services 
Lisa Telling, Administrative Assistant - Forefront Dining Services 
Ryan Hutchins, Environmental Services Director, Environmental Services 
 
Guest: American Sign Language Interpreter (ASL) 
 
Old Business: This is where you put in any follow-up or old business from the 
previous meeting. 
 
There was not any old business from the previous meeting that needed to be brought 
up for discussion or to follow-up on. 
 
Outings for April 2025: 

-Dollar Tree – TBD 
-Culvers – TBD 
 

Special Events for April 2025: 

Bob and Tally – 4/17 @ 10:30 
Billy McCallister – 4/28 @ 11 
Resident Council – 4/17 @ 11 (Moved to Aspen dining) 
Let’s Talk Food – 4/16 @ 2 
Bookmobile- TBD 
 
 

Page 7 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
3



Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Sam, CTRS, discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Activities. 
 
Activities:  
• Activity programs are supposed to meet your interests and needs. Do you feel the 

activities here do that? 
 

-Multiple residents said yes 
-A Card group was cancelled, and I didn’t see a time for a makeup 
 -Clay to discuss communication for group makeups with Life Enrichment  
-Can we do another day of Bingo? 
-We need two sessions of Bingo; it’s getting too crowded. 

-Sam, CTRS, said she understands residents want another day of bingo and will 
add another day a month to see how that goes 

 
• Do you participate in the activities here? 

 
-All residents said yes. 

 
• Do you enjoy them? 

 
-Residents said yes. 
-One resident said most of the time. 

 
• Are there enough helpers and supplies available so that everyone who wants to can 

participate? 
 
-Yes. 
-No, we could use more help. 
-Depends on the activity, but not always. 
 

• Do you as a group have input into the selection of the activities that are offered? 
 
-Yes, I feel comfortable going to life enrichment with new ideas for activities and 
outings. I feel I am being heard because I have noticed us doing some of the activities 
I suggested. 
 
- Are there any wheelchair accessible gardening areas? 
 -Sam replied that we do have some raised gardening beds in each courtyard that 
 activities and volunteers can help with.  
 -Great, thank you. 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 65



• Does the facility follow up on your suggestions? 
 
-Yes. 

 
• Do you have other feedback about the activities program here? 

 
-I would really like to see another day of bingo. 
 -Sam replied that we will add another day. 
 

• In addition to scheduled activities, are there opportunities for you to socialize with 
other residents? 
 
-All residents said yes. 
 

• Are there places you can go to when you want to be with other residents? 
 
-Yes. 
-Outside in the courtyard. 
-I don’t have any issues with visitors or residents. 
 
1. Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was open for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or ask 
questions: 
 
-Christian, GM of Dining Services, started off the discussion updating residents that they 
are still dealing with supply of pasteurized eggs. This means that the kitchen is not able 
to do over medium or any “runny” eggs, if you order a runny egg and receive scrambled 
eggs that is the reasoning. 
 -A resident asked, What about boiled eggs? 
 -Christian replied that they do have boiled eggs available. 

-Great, thank you. 
-Timeliness of residents receiving trays was discussed. 

-Melanie to follow up with nursing to make sure trays are being passed efficiently 
on all floors. 

-Is there any chance of getting Coke? 
 -Sam asked a vending machine? 
 -Resident replies Yes, they can bring one in, I used to work for Coke. 

-Christian, GM of Dining Services, said the kitchen can only serve ginger ale, 
juice and water unfortunately. 
-Sam reminded the resident that we have the pop cart go around every Friday 
and he can purchase more. 

-I did not like the rice and teriyaki dish, it was too watery. 
 -Christian, GM of Dining Services, to follow up with chef. 
 
 

Page 9 of 65



2. Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was open for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or ask 
questions: 
 
-Yes. 
-Yes, very good. 
-I had someone come in unannounced to change my lightbulbs, it caught me off guard 
because it was someone I didn’t recognize like our normal nurses and aides that we see 
regularly. 

-Ryan, Environmental Services Director, replied he will talk with staff about 
making sure they are following protocol and knocking on the door and 
announcing who they are and why they’re there and to wait for a response before 
entering. This is your home, and we need to treat it as such. 
-Thank you. 

-Housekeeping is doing a very good job. 
-I was wondering why the wheelchair swing was removed from the courtyards? I noticed 
both Cherry and Birch courtyards were gone, and I enjoy using them when the weather 
is nice. 

-Ryan, Environmental Services Director, said the swings are nearing 20 years old 
and due to erosion, they were becoming a safety hazard. We are looking for 
replacements and some changes to the courtyards to make the areas even more 
enjoyable for residents. 

 -I’m glad to hear they’re being replaced. 
 

3. Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was open for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or ask 
questions:  
 
-Ryan, Environmental Services Director, started off by saying please let Environmental 
Services know if you are having any issues with cooling and heating. With this crazy up 
and down weather we are experiencing we will have to make some adjustments more 
often so please let us know so we can make it more comfortable for you. 
-One resident said that their room is cold, and it’s never been hot. 

-Ryan, Environmental Services Director, asked what room? We will get that 
taken care of. 
-Clay to submit work order. 

-Another resident stated it was too warm in their room and asked for it to be adjusted. 
 -Clay to submit a work order. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 65



4. Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was open for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or ask 
questions: 
 
-No, everything is good. 
-Good. 
-They usually have 3 but it seems someone is always getting pulled so we are left with 
two, when it seems like they would benefit from that third nurse. The other day one of 
our nurses was pulled for a 1 on 1.  
 -Melanie, Birch ADON, explained that sometimes this happens due to sick staff 
 or several other medical reasons on other floors that need attention. 
-My bed is made late at night 3-4 times a month, around 10:30-11 at night and it keeps 
me from laying down when I want. 
 -Melanie, Birch ADON, to follow up with that residents ADON to talk with staff 
 about making sure beds are made in a timely manner. 
 

5. Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was open for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or ask 
questions: 
 
-There were a few concerns about call light times. 

-Melanie, Birch ADON, to check call light times and speak with other ADON’s to 
check their resident’s call light times and follow up with staff. 

 
6. Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was open for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or ask 
questions:              
 
-They’ve been good. 
-I always get my showers. 
-Is it two a week? 
 -Sam, CTRS, replied yes, are you getting two? 
 -Resident replied yes, thank you. 
-I have been getting a shower at night but not in the morning. I would like my shower to 
be switched to the morning. 

-Melanie, Birch ADON, replied we give so many showers that we can’t do them 
all in the morning. But if you get two showers a week, we try to do one in the 
morning and one at night. 

-They aren’t consistent. If I have a 9 AM shower I’d like it to be at 9 AM not noon. 
 -Melanie, Birch ADON, to follow up with staff. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 11 of 65



7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on your Pavilion. 
The floor was open for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or ask 
questions: 
 
-When do we have to turn off our TV? 

-Sam, CTRS, said we ask that quiet hours start at 10 PM. IT doesn’t mean that 
you can’t watch TV or listen to music, we just ask that you turn it down and 
respect your neighbors 

-My roommates TV is loud late at night when I’m trying to sleep. 
 -Sam, CTRS, to talk with staff. 
-My roommates family visits often and turns the TV volume up loud but never turns it 
down when they leave. I have to ask staff to do it. 
 -Sam, CTRS, asked if staff is helping? 
 -Resident replied yes, they do. 
 -Sam, CTRS, said maybe we can put a sign up to remind them to please lower 
 the volume. 
-A lot of noise at 2 am if my door is open, I know they have a job to do so I usually just 
shut my door. 

-Melanie, Birch ADON, replied that there shouldn’t be excessive noise at 2 AM. I 
will have a talk with staff to make sure they respect the residents’ quiet hours 

 
The floor was opened for additional comments: 
 
-One resident asked for headphones for their TV 

-Ryan, Environmental Services Director, replied that they only have a handful at 
this time, but they’ll see what we can do. We are looking for replacements for the 
old headphones we have because they are getting older and harder to replace 
that specific model. 

 
The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on April 17th at 11:00am in the 
Multi-Purpose Room. Sam asked for a volunteer to read over and sign the March 2025 
minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Pavilions Resident Council Meeting 
was adjourned at 11:55 AM by Sam Mahon, seconded by X.     
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_______________________  _______________________ 
Clayton Wagatha    Sam Mahon, CTRS            
Marketing/Life Enrichment   Recreational Therapist 
 
 
 
______________________ 
X, Cherry Resident 
 

Page 12 of 65



Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- March 25th  2025 

 
The March meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to order at 
1:33pm in the Elm Common Area. 
 
Members Present were: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
18 Residents attended. 
 
Staff Present: 
Susan Eldred, Recreation Therapist 
Naomi Rode, Assistant Director of Nursing 
 
Old Business:  
None 
 
New Business: 
Asked the residents if they need help do the staff help them. X stated “yes”, and X stated, “they be 
good.” X stated, “so far” and X, stated “I don’t know.” 
 
Asked the residents if they were being offered a snack before bed. X, X and X stated “yes.” X stated 
“often”, and X stated, “oh yeah.” X stated, “not really.” Staff was reminded to offer snacks at night. 
 
Asked the residents if the staff were respectful to the residents.  
X, X and X stated “yes.” X stated “absolutely”, and X stated, “more or less.” 
 
Asked the residents if the food is good here.  
X and X stated “good”, and X stated “yes.” X stated, “pretty good, more cookies.” X stated, “sure do.” 
 
Asked the residents if the rooms were getting cleaned.  
X, X and X stated “yes.” X stated “yeah”, and X stated, “too clean.” 
 
Asked the residents if their clothes are getting cleaned. 
X, X, X, X and X “yes.” X stated, “really good.” 
 
Asked the residents if the Temperature in the rooms are good.  
X, X and X stated “yes.” X stated, “I think so” and X stated, “oh yeah.” X stated, “sometimes it’s cold.” 
Maintenance team was notified of temperature concern.  
 
Asked the residents if they have enough to do. 
X stated, “they are fine” and X stated, “I’m happy with it.” X stated, “I think they are fine” and X 
stated, “just ok, more goodies.” X stated “the tv is nice, tell things before happen.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 65



Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments.  
 
 
Suggestions for upcoming activities: 
Easter Trivia/ Easter candies, hunt 
Garden clean-up/ Plant flowers 
Outside walks 
Oatmeal cookies 
Give back- Baked good for fire department, tie blanket 
 
 
Meeting was closed at 2:01pm 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Eldred, CTRS   Naomi Rode, BSN, RN  
 

Page 14 of 65



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

March 2025 

  

  
Employee: Ashley Tarras 

Awarded for: 

Going above and beyond for a resident to get a new Power Wheelchair. Which will allow 
this client greater independence in his home environment as well as his community. 
Community mobility is a lifeline for this resident. Thank you Ashley for supporting this 
residents needs to maintain a high quality of life. 

Position: Occupational Therapist 

Nominated by: Erica Nesvig Paddock 

 
 
 

 

  
Employee: Chelsea Nash 

Awarded for: 
Thanks for always jumping in and helping assist with dressing changes! Chelsea has a 
very positive attitude and always shares her knowledge and insight when helping 
others. 

Position: RN 

Nominated by: Dan Newcomb 

 
 
 

  
Employee: Jake Patt 

Awarded for: 

Thanks for providing great customer service this weekend when a family member was 

concerned over a "lost" clothing item. Jake reassured the family member and found the 

item promptly. 

Position: Maintenance 

Nominated by: Dan 

 
 
 

  
Employee: Ty Antkoviak 

Awarded for: 
Ty is consistently helpful to coworkers, often going above and beyond to help CNA’s Ty 

never says “it’s not my job” and has a happy helpful demeanor every day. 

Position: Staff Development Coordinator 

Nominated by: Shelby Mckay 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
4



 
 
 

Employee: Ashley Walters 

Awarded for: 
Covering the LTC during vacations with extra admissions and re-admissions without 

hesitation 

Position:  Social Services Designee 

Nominated by: Holly Edmondson, Director of Nursing 

 
Employee: Kyle Kessler 

Awarded for: 

While working with 2 other CNAs, Kyle prepped and passed every Birch hall tray while 

the other CNA on the floor was busy. Did it all with a smile and then immediately started 

answering call lights when he was done. 

Thank you for keeping dinner running, smoothly! We are lucky to have you, Kyle! 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Chauna Seekamp, RN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16 of 65



Department 1st QTR 2025 4th Qtr 2024 3rd Qtr 2024 2nd Qtr 2024

Administration -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% 8.57$ 0.000%

Adult Day Services -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000%

Child Day Care 416.59$ 0.008% 98.30$ 0.002% 275.85$ 0.006% 108.81$ 0.003%

CNA 73,573.65$ 1.372% 55,747.47$ 1.187% 68,069.11$ 1.527% 30,768.27$ 0.908%

CNA Training 229.33$ 0.004% 227.94$ 0.005% 129.71$ 0.003% -$ 0.000%

Marketing/Foundation -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000% -$ 0.000%

Cottages 16,787.39$ 0.313% 18,999.56$ 0.405% 17,775.33$ 0.399% 11,198.26$ 0.330%

Diversional Therapy 803.13$ 0.015% 1,556.01$ 0.033% 1,696.27$ 0.038% 3,075.09$ 0.091%

Financial Mgt. -$ 0.000% 558.29$ 0.012% 634.42$ 0.014% 902.27$ 0.027%

Housekeeping 3,123.34$ 0.058% 2,446.53$ 0.052% 3,466.06$ 0.078% 1,783.13$ 0.053%

Human Resources 29.49$ 0.001% 8.91$ 0.000% 34.28$ 0.001% 10.74$ 0.000%

Human Services 1,693.70$ 0.032% 704.80$ 0.015% 362.72$ 0.008% 148.77$ 0.004%

Laundry 2,935.13$ 0.055% 2,023.39$ 0.043% 1,390.57$ 0.031% 1,544.37$ 0.046%

LPN 13,970.18$ 0.261% 10,423.17$ 0.222% 12,716.17$ 0.285% 15,808.78$ 0.466%

Maintenance 12,496.29$ 0.233% 9,061.88$ 0.193% 8,706.38$ 0.195% 7,059.54$ 0.208%

Nursing Administration 8,642.83$ 0.161% 4,805.39$ 0.102% 8,400.77$ 0.189% 9,678.58$ 0.285%

RN 31,913.28$ 0.595% 30,726.34$ 0.654% 28,004.08$ 0.628% 25,386.34$ 0.749%

Therapies - PT, OT 1,790.90$ 0.033% 2,364.88$ 0.050% 4,137.96$ 0.093% 5,446.10$ 0.161%

Totals $168,405.23 $139,752.86 $155,799.68 $112,927.62

% of payroll 3.142% 5360563 2.976% 4695339.9 3.496% 4456596 3.331%

Grand Traverse Pavilions

Quarterly Overtime Rolling Calendar Lookback

Pay Dates In:

Page 17 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
5



 
 

TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
FROM: Dave Hautamaki, Interim Administrator/CEO       
RE:  March Report 
 
Census (Average Daily Census) 
 Apr-MTD Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

Medical Care 
Facility (MCF) 

180 178 180 178 178 163 173 

Cottages 55 55 56 58 58 58 61 

 
Occupancy Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

MTD Goal 85% Available beds 89% 90% 89% 85% 85% 85% 

YTD Goal 85% Licensed beds 74% 74% 74%    

 
MCF Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

Admissions & Re-admits 75 59 55 64 45 55 

Discharges 72 57 55 52 46 55 

MMC Referrals 227 231 239 221 169 210 

MMC Denied 34 33 41 48 32 35 

Transfers to LTC 0 10 2 2 1 5 

 
Cottages Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

Admissions 2 1 3 2 0 1 

Respite 7 10 6 4 4 7 

Discharges  2 2 1 2 2 2 

 
Finance 

 Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

Combined Net Income $(63,773) $(451) $51,676 $(778,017) $16,634 $47,415 

MCF   
Net Income 

$6,197 $54,187 $117,568 $(721,830) $55,083 $54,974 

Cottage  
Net Income 

$(69,971) $(54,637) $(65,892) $(56,187) $(38,448) $(7,560) 

Cash Balance $6,946,116 $7,295,419 $6,873,874 $7,860,837 $8,789,614 $3,853,444 

A/R Days Sales 
Outstanding 

53 60 60 57 56 58 

  

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Actual PPD 

$495 $493 $471 $507 $492 $468 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Budgeted PPD 

$486 $492 $501 $453 $457 $453 

Variance 
(unfavorable)/favorable 

$(9) $(1) $30 $(54) $(35) $(15) 

 
       

Page 18 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
6



2 
 

Facility Reported Incidents 
 Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

Medical Care Facility 11 4 12 7 3 7 

 
Wellness Center 

Numbers of Patients seen: Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

Medicare A 31 38   32 32 21 27 

Medicare Advantage Skilled 43 39 42 40 33 36 

Private Insurance: Inpatient 9 4 4 4 1 3 

Private Pay: Inpatient 1 0 0 0 0 2 

Auto: Inpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Med A/Rehab Inpatient 
Totals 

84 77 74 76 55 68 

       

Medicaid 3 3 2 3 5 5 

Medicare B: Inpatient 22 35 30 34 37 42 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Inpatient 

29 19 19 16 21 19 

Med B Inpatient Totals 54 54 51 53 63 66 

       

Medicare B: Outpatient 34 21 30 22 29 26 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Outpatient 

39 35 39 42 47 48 

Private Insurance: 
Outpatient 

20 18 17 16 20 21 

Work Compensation: 
Outpatient 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Private Pay: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Auto: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Outpatient Totals 93 74 86 80 96 95 

       

Numbers of Wellness 
Center Visits: 

      

Aquatic inpatients therapy 
visits 

16 21 11 14 18 16 

Aquatic aftercare visits per 
month 

335 284 294 200 287 312 

Aquatic outpatient PT visits 144 141 146 82 175 184 

Aquatic group class 
participants 

95 107 88 52 95 89 

Land therapy visits (PT, OT, 
SLP) 

199 200 261 212 203 266 

Total Outpatient therapy 
visit 

343 341 388 315 378 450 

       

Outpatient aquatic therapy 
revenue 

36,916.97 36,150.26 42,946.16 34,317.98 47,778.42 49,639.40 

Aftercare monthly revenue 3,350 2,840 2,940 2,000 2,870 3,120 

Aquatic group class 
revenue 

1,900 2,140 1,760 1,040 1900 1,780 

Cottages visits 35 42 95 91 26 41 

Total Wellness center 
revenue 

42,166.97 41,130.26 47,646.16 37,357.98 46,548.42 54,539.40 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 19 of 65



3 
 

Staffing 
 Mar-25 Feb-25 Jan-25 Dec-24 Nov-24 Oct-24 

Hires 12 18 18 8 9 15 

Resignations  6 5 6 6 3 3 

Referrals 11 5 6 9 5 3 

Total # Employees 339 337 330 334 338 332 

April 2025 MDT # 349 employees 
Talent Sourcing and Recruiting is underway for census to grow to 185 (CNAs, UWs, RNs, Social Worker) 

 
Activities 
Recreational Therapists in the life enrichment department continue to complete video chats 
throughout the month for 6 residents over FaceTime or Google Duo. 
 
Activities, Special Events and Outings that occurred in March included small group activities such as 
Bird Care; Card Group including Euchre and Uno, Word Games (Name that Tune and Scategories), 
hand Creative Kitchen group baking items for mocktail hour such as Shamrock Shakes and Mint Oreo 
Parfaits. 
 
Residents engaged in arts and crafts with Mardi Gras masks with childcare, creative coloring, St 
Patty’s Day crafts. In addition to helping fold the weekly Pavilions Post, residents continue to attend 
book club meetings continuing their fifth book, The Women by Kristin Hannah. Residents continue to 
check out books from the book mobile that visits monthly with rotating reading material to check out. 
Residents participated in morning stretch/exercise groups throughout the week. Song circle group 
continues to take place throughout the building including Maple rehab pavilion as a morning and 
afternoon activity in hallways and common areas. 
 
Large group activities that were held included: Drum Circles, Cardio Drumming, Bingo, Bingo Store, 
Balloon Ball, Bowling, Karaoke, SingFit, Popcorn Fridays & Movies and Tuesday Mocktails. Special 
events that took place during March were a Mardi Gras Party, March Madness in the Multi-Purpose 
Room, St. Patty’s Day Party, Guest Performer Music With Rebekah and Ash Wednesday. 
Livestreaming of church services from Central United Methodist Church, Gaither’s Gospel and St. 
Francis of Assisi continues Sunday’s. Catholic church services were attended with Catholic Mass with 
Father Joe once this month, and Rosary & Holy Communion weekly.  Outings that residents signed 
up for included Grand Traverse Mall for shopping and lunch, China Fair, and Walmart. Elm residents 
have participated in various sensory group activities including-sensory cart, coloring, crafts. They 
engage in song circle twice a week with life enrichment staff. They participate in small group morning 
exercise. Cognitive groups include trivia, Jeopardy, history, categories, large dice games, Yahtzee, 
puzzles, book clubs and jokes. Residents participated in a creative kitchen making Boston Crème 
Poke Cake, Shamrock Shakes and Girl Scout Cookie pie. Residents engage in weekly 
intergenerational visits from the children of the Pavilions Day care center. 
 
On March 19th, Let’s Talk Food Meeting was held and on March 20th the Pavilions Resident Council 
meeting for residents was held for all pavilions to come together to meet. Elm Resident Council was 
held separately on March 25th.  
 
   
Environmental Services 
Planning all set for the updating of Aspen. To include Pantry, Nurses Station and Sunroom and a few 
small updates throughout resident rooms and the hallways.  
 
Beech Gym and locker room painting is complete. 
 

Page 20 of 65



4 
 

New Dump Trailer for outside maintenance was purchased. Has already made a big impact for our 
Spring projects. 
 
Willow 1st flooring updates are in full swing. New flooring and paint throughout. Floor should be 
complete around April 18th. 
 
Planning has started for the replacement of our Birch and Aspen roofs. Both will be done around end 
of May. 
 

 

Page 21 of 65



1 

 

GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Financial Operations Report 

March 2025 

 

Grand Traverse Pavilions Combined 

REVENUE:      

The overall revenue for the Pavilions in March was $3,057,070 resulting in an 
unfavorable budget variance of $78,628.   
         

EXPENSES:        
The total overall operating expenses for the Pavilions in March were $3,120,844 
resulting in an unfavorable variance to budget of $24,332.  

     
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

There was net loss of $63,773 from the combined programs of the Pavilions in 
March resulting in an unfavorable budget variance of $102,960.  

 
OPERATING CASH:     

Total cash at month-end was $6,946,116. There was a net decrease in overall 
cash of $349,303 for the month.  
 
In April we were notified by the County that they credited (as of December 31, 
2024) interest income of $168,408.12 to the Pavilions share of cash held by the 
County.  That is the reason why the previously reported cash balances have 
increased. 
 
The 4-month retroactive increase in the provider taxes totaling $287,586.20 
(previously expensed) was paid in March.  Legal legal fees ($28,282.50), 
Outstation worker costs ($18,725.00), One third of our general insurance 
premiums ($97,900.33) and payment for the board approved Kubota 
($28,006.00) were the other unusual cash outlays during March and contributed 
to the decrease in cash during March. 
 
The schedule of irregular payments from GTP has been updated and is included 
in your packet.  There are several large payments that have or will be made in 
April identified on the schedule. 
 
On March 31 PACE North provided the Pavilions a restricted check for 
$103,713.37 to be applied to the amount owed under the Sublease Deferral 
Agreement IF the Pavilions would accept that payment without any 
documentation to support how much is currently due.  Management recommends 
not accepting this as a condition for payment and continuing to pursue remedies 
under the defaulted sublease agreement.   

Page 22 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
7



2 

 

  
VOUCHERS:        

Purchase orders, invoices, checks written, and supporting documentation were 
reviewed for voucher numbers 5632-5639 for the month of March and were in 
order without exception.  
 

 
Grand Traverse Medical Care 

REVENUE:    
The census for March averaged 177 residents which was three below the 
budgeted census and three below the prior month.  Private pay census was eight 
above budget, Medicare was three below budget, Medicaid was thirteen below 
budget and Hospice was five above the budgeted census.  The occupancy for 
March was 74.0% of licensed beds and 89.3% of available beds.  Year to date 
occupancy is 74.3% of licensed bed days and 89.6% of available bed days. The 
last day for flexibility in managing census to 85% (to avoid a significant reduction 
in future Medicaid payments) is September 30, 2025.  Efforts to increase the 
census to 204 (85% of our 240 licensed beds) are underway.  Success in that 
regard is very important for the long- term value of the Pavilions nursing home 
beds to the community. 
 
The average rate per patient day (“PPD”) for inpatient resident revenue was 
$3.14 over budget (favorable).  This is less than the prior month due to 
decreases in Medicare rates.  Those rates vary based on the particular Medicare 
or Medicare Advantage payer and also based on the resident’s medical needs.   
 
There was an approximately $2,500 reduction to revenue due to non-coverage 
notification compliance issues.  The root cause of these issues were addressed 
in series of meetings involving the Administrator and other parties that are 
involved in the process.  We are encouraged that the GTP culture is encouraging 
prioritizing compliance and collaborative solutions to fixing systems that need 
improvement. 
 
Other revenue was over budget due mostly to higher than budgeted Direct Care 
Worker Reimbursements and an estimate of year-to-date interest income of 
$30,000.  
 
Work is continuing assembling the information required for Plante Moran to 
prepare the Medicare and Medicaid cost reports for 2024.  When complete, 
Plante Moran will use the filed Medicaid cost report to estimate the per day 
payment GTP will receive from Medicaid and hospice providers from October 1, 
2025 through September 30, 2026.  
 
As a reminder, because occupancy rose between 2023 and 2024, relatively fixed 
costs (like the pension plan contributions) per resident day declined and will 
contribute to a lower reimbursement beginning this fall.  Also contributing to lower 

Page 23 of 65



3 

 

costs per day is the end of the 3-year amortization of the 2021 pension plan 
contributions from the bond proceeds.  Offsetting those items are retention pay 
and the first year of amortization of the December 2024 pension plan 
contribution. 
 
Following through on the Plante Moran strategic planning recommendation to 
reorganize the cottage operations into a separate legal entity is still a $50,000 
per month benefit to future nursing home Medicaid reimbursements.  The 
particulars of the legal and reimbursement advise have been briefly reviewed 
with Mr. Hansen. 

 
EXPENSES:   
  Operating Expenses were $9.47 per patient day more than budgeted for the 

month resulting in an unfavorable flexed variance of $52,123 based on the 5,504 
days of care.  About $17,000 relates to making up missed January and February 
retirement contributions that were identified and corrected in March.  There was 
$8,000 of catch-up billing related to trash services that is also non-recurring.  
Maintenance expenses, including wages, are higher in large part due to the 
ongoing work in moving offices and preparing Aspen for reopening.  There were 
also several pieces of nursing equipment that were purchased during March.   

 
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

Grand Traverse Medical Care produced net income of $6,197 for the month, 
which was $41,549 more than budgeted.  

 
RECEIVABLES: 

Days Revenue Outstanding (“DRO”) is 53 days as of 3/31/2025.  This is seven 
less than as of 2/28/2025, primarily due to writing off uncollectable amounts 
against established reserves.  Our goal is to reduce that number to 45 days.   
 
There was one private pay resident awaiting a Medicaid determination as of the 
beginning of March.  In addition, six private pay residents filed for Medicaid 
during March.  Five of those Seven applications were approved in March.  The 
result is two residents who have completed Medicaid applications that are still 
waiting for a determination as of March 31. 
 
In addition, there are four private pay residents who have not paid their current 
bill but have indicated they are in the process of completing a Medicaid 
application that they believe will cover their outstanding balance. 

 
 Regarding the audit of the 2022 cost report, Plante Moran prepared and filed a 

request for an Internal Conference to continue to dispute those material 
proposed adjustments with which we disagree.  Audit adjustments result in 
payment reconciliations in the future. 

 
 

Page 24 of 65



4 

 

 
The Cottages 

 
REVENUE:  

Total revenue of $286,433 generated a $52,268 unfavorable variance to the 
budget.    
 
The average leased occupancy for the Cottages-Assisted Living was 51 
apartments during the month (10 below budget, 1 less than the prior month), 
representing 65.4% occupancy.  In addition, there were 89 days (average of 2.9 
per night) of overnight respite provided during the month (1 less than the prior 
month and 58 above budget).   Hawthorn Lofts-Independent Living average 
census (excluding the Administrator) was 1 resident per day for 33% occupancy 
which was the same as the prior month and one below budget. Total average 
census of 55 residents (one less than the prior month). 
 
Occupancy above included an average of 12 Pace North residents in the 
Cottages, (the same as the prior month) and 15 days of Respite Care were 
provided for a Pace North participant (thirteen less the prior month). 

 
EXPENSES:  

Expenses for March (before depreciation) were $333,082 which was above the 
budgeted amount by $9,143 for an unfavorable variance.  The expense 
variances related to floor coverings that resulted in the immediate rental of an 
otherwise unleasable apartment. 
 
 

NET INCOME/LOSS: 
The program had a net loss for the month of $69,971 resulting in an unfavorable 
variance of $61,411.   
 
 

Unassigned Fund Balance 
 

Approved 2025 Operating Budget       $ 36.5M   
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Percentage                20% 
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Amount                 $7.3M 
Current Unassigned Fund Balance*          $6.9M 
Current Fund Balance as a percentage of Operating Budget         19%  
Amount Available Above/ (Below) Target        ($.4)M 
 
*Fund balance is different from a cash balance as it includes other assets and is net of 
current liabilities.  Those items do not generally change significantly so we are reporting 
here on the cash balance amount. 

Page 25 of 65



Page 26 of 65



Page 27 of 65



Page 28 of 65



Page 29 of 65



Page 30 of 65



Page 31 of 65



Page 32 of 65



Page 33 of 65



Page 34 of 65



Page 35 of 65



Page 36 of 65



Page 37 of 65



Page 38 of 65



Grand Traverse Pavilions

Irregular payments

2025

Grand Traverse County union pension bond principal January 220,000.00        Amortization changes each year Pmts done in 2039, prin. Gradually inc.

Grand Traverse County union pension bond interest January 93,581.25          Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Unemployment claims for 2024 January 11,547.00          We share an unemployment account Billed by the County annually based on paid claims

AFP Specialty Fire Panel Testing January 18,495.54          Older invoices received in late December Expensed in December; billing information updated

Midwest Pools Inc. Pool bottom  refinishing January 13,625.00          Capital purchase

Northern Michigan Glass Front Doors January 15,465.00          Capital purchase

Acrisure Cyber liability annual premium January 12,287.50          Expensed monthly

Warner Norcross Attorney Fees January 52,740.22          December fees paid in January Expensed in December

Brown & Brown Mgmt Liability annual premium January 31,860.00          Expensed monthly

Payroll 3 payrolls in the month (26 per year) January 750,000.00        Biweekly pay, two 3 pay period months each year

West Bend Insurance Insured portion of Workers Compensation Exp January 34,401.60          Down payment Followed by 8 payments of $11,019.80; expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond interest payment February 53,675.00          Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly, Paid twice each year

Otis Elevator Two service contracts February 7,031.88             Late billings for part of 2024 Estimate expensed monthly

CMS--Medicare Penalties related to Survey February 29,347.50          

State of Michigan Quality Assurance Supplement Reconciliation February (259,721.82)       Annual reconciliation--refund in 2025

Payroll Perfect Attendance February 9,000.00             Quarterly with an annual bonus for those with perfect attendance

Nationwide Insurance Liability, property and auto insurance March 97,900.33          Installment payment 1 of 3 Calendar year policy; expensed monthly

Warner Norcross Attorney Fees for January March 28,282.50          

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract March 18,725.00          1/2 Paid back to GTP by Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/2 each year

State of Michigan Quality Assurance Assessment March 264,677.40        4 months retroactive increase 

State of Michigan Quality Measures Incentive Assessment March 22,908.80          4 months retroactive increase 

Ginop Sales Kubota March 28,006.00          Board Approved Kubota Utility vehicle

Projected

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond principal payment April 230,000.00        Level principle payments Pmts done in 2031-level principle pmts

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond interest payment April 21,907.50          Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Bond interest April 41,171.25          Interest decreases each year Paid by Pace to GTP

Relias elearning program April 39,000.00          Annual expense; billed 10/1 each year Employee e learning module

NetSmart Technologies Annual Pmt for legacy healthcare record access April 25,200.00          Annual payment annual pmt for legacy healthcare record access

TES Construction 50% down on two rooms April 112,500.00        

Warner Norcross Attorney Fees for Feb April 9,750.00             

Payroll Perfect Attendance May 5,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Backflow Man Backflow valve testing/repairs May 5,000.00             Required annual testing

MCMCFC Annual Dues May 12,100.00          This is the 2024-25 amount

Plante Moran Cost Report Preparation June 12,000.00          Medicare & Medicaid Cost Reports-annual Benchmarking survey and MA rate projec.

Nationwide Insurance Liability, property and auto insurance June 97,900.33          Installment payment 2 of 3 Calendar year policy; expensed monthly

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract June 37,450.00          1/2 due to be paid back to GTP from Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/3

Grand Traverse County union pension bond interest payment July 89,896.25          Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Otis Elevator Elevator contracts July 11,000.00          Annual expense for elevator maintenance

Brightly Software, Inc. Maintenance management software July 11,000.00          Annual renewal for software license

State of Michigan 2019 Audit payment--after Circuit Court decision July??? 334,731.63        Dif between audited cost and allowed costs for claims between 10/1/20 and 9/30/21 (1 year)

State of Michigan 2022 Audit payment-audit underway Jan 2025 July?? ?? Dif between audited cost and allowed costs for claims between 10/1/21 to 9/30/23 (2 years)

Payroll Perfect Attendance August 5,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond principal August 275,000.00        Amortization changes each year Pmts done in 2039, prin. Gradually increase

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond interest August 53,675.00          Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Payroll 3 payrolls in the month (26 per year) August 750,000.00        

Leading Age Annual Dues September 30,000.00          Annual Dues Updated for actual 24-25 invoice (higher by $325.00)

Nationwide Insurance Liability, property and auto insurance September 97,900.33          Installment payment 3 of 3 Calendar year policy; expensed monthly

MERS Supplemental Pension Payment October 31,000.00          Amount varies annually Expense accrued monthly

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond interest payment October 19,176.25          Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Bond principal paid to County October 160,000.00        Pmts done in 2037, prin inc by $5k most years To be paid by Pace to GTP, subject to sublease payment deferral agreement

Grand Traverse County Rent-- Pace Bond interest paid to County October 41,171.25          Interest decreases each year To be paid by Pace to GTP, subject to sublease payment deferral agreement

Payroll Perfect Attendance October 6,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Relias elearning program October 39,000.00          Annual expense; billed 10/1 each year Employee e learning module

NetSmart Technologies Annual Pmt for legacy healthcare record access October 25,200.00          Annual payment annual pmt for legacy healthcare record access

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Facility October 31,250.00          Level lease payment To be paid by Pace to GTP

Longevity Pay Annual pay based on seniority and hours November 85,000.00          Annual payment; expensed monthly Per union agreement and handbook

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract December 19,000.00          1/2 due to be paid back to GTP from Pace Estimate--contract runs 10/1 to 9/30 each year

MERS Defined Benefit Pension Contribution December -                       Elective payment approved by board (if any) $1.2M in 2024

Retention Pay Part of union contract and past practice for others December 325,000.00        Includes employer taxes, expensed monthly

Page 39 of 65



Page 40 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
8



Page 41 of 65



Page 42 of 65



Page 43 of 65



Page 44 of 65



Page 45 of 65



Page 46 of 65



Page 47 of 65



Page 48 of 65



Page 49 of 65



Page 50 of 65



Page 51 of 65



Page 52 of 65



Page 53 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
9



Page 54 of 65



Page 55 of 65



Page 56 of 65



Page 57 of 65



Page 58 of 65



Page 59 of 65



Page 60 of 65



Page 61 of 65



Page 62 of 65



Page 63 of 65

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
10



Page 64 of 65

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
11

dgratton
Text Box
x



dgratton
Text Box
ADDED

dgratton
Text Box



 9:30 AM Shotgun Start | Best Ball 4-player Scramble
 Proxy Games | Silent Auction/Raffle | 2 drink tickets per player

 Hole-in-One Prize: 2-year lease from Serra Subaru 
Lunch to follow featuring smoked brisket and smoked 

pork with sides and dessert during reception announcing  
winners and auction prizes

 $125 per player

FRIDAY, MAY 16TH

THE CROWN GOLF CLUB
T R A V E R S E C I T Y

For more information: 231.932.3019 | gtpavilions.org/golf
Gold Sponsor Beverage Cart Sponsor Food Sponsor

Page 65 of 65

dgratton
Text Box
12


